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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable Chairman and Members
Musconetcong Sewerage Authority
Budd Lake, New Jersey 07828

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying statements of net position of the Musconetcong Sewerage Authority as
of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net
position and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the audit
requirements prescribed by the Division of Local Government Services, Department of Community Affairs,
State of New Jersey (the “Division”), and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement.

WELO




Honorable Chairperson and Members of the
Musconetcong Sewerage Authority
Page 2.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Musconetcong Sewerage Authority as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the respective
changes in financial position and cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis and the schedule of the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
as listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of the financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.
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Honorable Chairperson and Members of the
Musconetcong Sewerage Authority
Page 3.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary schedules as listed
in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis, as required by the Division of Local
Government Service and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The accompanying supplemental schedules as listed in the table of contents are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the accompanying supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, are fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August 18, 2021
on our consideration of the Musconetcong Sewerage Authority’s internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Musconetcong Sewerage
Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Very truly yours,

Wielloty & Campany, LLC

WIELKOTZ & COMPANY, LLC
Certified Public Accountants
Pompton Lakes, New Jersey

August 18, 2021

WELO




Required Supplementary Information - Part I




Management Discussion and Analysis




MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the Musconetcong Sewerage Authority, we offer the Authority's financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the Authority’s financial performance during the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2020 and 2019. Please read this analysis in conjunction with the Authority’s financial
statements, which follow this section.

Financia! Highlights
» The Authority’s assets and deferred outflows exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources by $20,779,110 (net position) for the fiscal year reported. This compares to the previous
year when assets exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $21,152,719.
e Total net position is comprised of the following:
(1) Net investment in capital assets of $20,890,085 includes property and equipment, net of
accumulated depreciation, and reduced for outstanding debt and unexpended funds related to

the purchase or construction of capital assets.

(2) Restricted of $24,551 are restricted by constraints imposed from outside the Authority such
as debt covenants, grantors, laws, or regulations,

(3) Unrestricted of $(135,526) represent the portion available to maintain the Authority’s
continuing obligations to citizens and creditors.
s Total liabilities of the Authority decreased by $814,827 to $10,564,059 during the fiscal year.
Overview of the Financial Statements
This annual report includes this management discussion, the independent auditor’s report and the basic
financial statements of the Authority, The financial statements also include notes that explain in more detail

some of the information in the financial statements.

Reqguired Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Authority report information of the Authority using accounting methods
similar to those used by private sector companies. These statements offer short and long-term financial
information about its activities. The Statement of Net Position includes all of the Authority’s assets, deferred
outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, and provides information about the nature
and amounts of investments in resources (assets), the consumption of net assets that is applicable to a future
petiod (deferred outflows of resources), the acquisition of net assets that is applicable to a future reporting
period (deferred inflows of resources) and the obligations to Authority creditors (liabilities). Italso provides
the basis for evaluating the capital structure of the Authority and assessing the liquidity and financial
flexibility of the Authority.



MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Net Position, This statement measures the results of the Authority’s operations over the past
year and can be used to determine whether the Authority has recovered all its costs through user fees and
other charges, operational stability and credit worthiness,

The final required financial statement is the Statement of Cash Flows. This statement reports cash receipts
and cash payments, and net changes in cash resulting from operations, investing and financing activities and
provides answers to such questions as what operational sources provided cash, what was the cash used for,
and what was the change in cash balance during the reporting period.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The accompanying notes to the financial statements provide information essential to a full understanding of
the financial statements. The notes to the financial statements begin immediately following the basic
financial statements.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report presents certain required
supplementary information, This supplementary information follows the notes to the financial statements,

Financial Analysis of the Authority

One of the most important questions asked about the Authorities finances is “Is the Authority as a whole
better able to fulfill its mission as a result of this years activities?” The Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position report information about the Authority’s
activities in a way that will help answer this question. These two statements report net position of the
Authority and the changes in the position. The teader can think of the Authority’s net position — the
difference between assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources —as
one way to measure financial health or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the
Authority’s net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating.
However, one will need to consider the non-financial factors such as changes in economic conditions,
population growth, development, and new or changed government regulation,



MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Net Position

As year-to-year financial information is accumulated on a consistent basis, changes in net position may be
observed and used to discuss the changing financial position of the Authority as a whole.

The Authority’s net position at fiscal year-end is $20,779,110. This is a $373,609 decrease under last year’s
net position of $21,152,719, A summary of the Authority’s statement of net position is presented in the
following table:

Condensed Statement of Net Position at December 31, 2020
With Comparative Prior Year Balances

Dollar Percent
FY 2020 FY 2019 Change Change
Current Assets 8,136,422 8,583,834 (444,412} (5.18)%
Capital Assets 23.875.337 24,337.371 (462.034) (1.90)%%
Total Assets 32.014.759 32,921,205 (906.446) (2.75)%
Deferred Outflows of Resources 329,952 521,422 (191,470} (36.72)%
Long-term Liabilities 2,935,283 4,056,140 (1,120,857 (27.63)%
Current Liabilities 7,628,776 7.322.746 306.030 4,18%
Total Liabilities 10,564.059 11,378.886 (814.827) (7.16)%
Deferred Inflows of Resources 1,001,542 911,022 90,520 0.94%
Net Investment in Capital Assets 20,890,085 21,536,132 (646,047) (3.00)%
Restricted 24,551 29,252 (4,700) (16.07Y%
Unrestricted (135.526) (412,665} 277.139 (67.16)%
Total Net Position 20,779.110 - 21,152.719 (373.609) (1.71)%




MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Net Position (Continued)

A summary of the Authority’s prior year statement of net position is presented with comparative figures in

the following table:

Condensed Statement of Net Position at December 31,2019
With Comparative Prior Year Balances

Current Assets
Capital Assets
Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Long-term Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

FY 2019
8,583,834

24,337.371
32,921,205

521,422
4,056,140
1,322,746
11,378.886
911,022

21,536,132
29,252

(412,665)

21,152,719

FY 2018
2,491,171
25,719,144
28.210,315
579,237
4,742,961
1,211,790
5.954.751
896.069

22,280,460
32,673
374.401

21.938.732

Dollar
Change

6,092,663

(1.381,773)
4,710,890

(57.815)

(686,821)
6,110,956
5,424,135
14.953

(744,328)

(3,421)
(38,264)

(786.013)

Percent
Change

244.57%

(537%
16.70%

(9.98)%
(14.48)%
504.29%
91.09%
1.67%
(3.34)%
(10.47)%
10.22%

(3.58)%




MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Net Position (Cdntinued)

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses
And Changes in Net Position for the Year Ending

December 31, 2020 with Comparative Prior Year Balances

Operating Revenues
Non-operating Revenues
Total Revenues

Depreciation
Other Operating Expenses

Other Non-operating Expense '

Total Expenses
Change in Net Position
Beginning Net Position

Ending Net Position

FY 2020
4,461,402
21.832
4,483.234
1,615,315
2,914,281
327,247
4,856,843
(373,609)
21,152.719

20,779,110

FY 2019

4,427,430
27.861
4.455.291
1,774,818
3,146,716
_316.770
5241304
(786,013)
21.938.732

21,152,719

Dollar
Change

33,972
(6.029)

27.943
(159,503)
(232,435)

7477
(384.461)

412,404
(786.013)
(373.609)

Percent
Change

0.77%

(21.64)%
0.63%

(8.99)%
(1.3N%
2.34%
(7.34)%
(52.47)%
(3.58)%

(1.77%




MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Net Position (Continued)

A summary of the Authority’s prior year statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position is
presented with comparative fiscal year figures in the following table:

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses

And Changes in Net Position for the Year Ending
December 31,2019 with Comparative Prior Year Balances

Operating Revenues
Non-operating Revenues
Total Revenues

Depreciation

Other Operating Expenses
Other Non-operating Expense
Total Expenses

Change in Net Position

Beginning Net Position

Ending Net Position

Budgetary Highlights

FY 2019

4,427,430
27.861
4,455,291

1,774,818
3,146,716
319,770
5.241,304
(786,013)
21.938.732

21,152,719

FY 2018
4,389,719
29.673
4419392
1,752,704
3,097,874
327416
5.177.994
(758,602)
22.697.334

21,938,732

Dollar
Change

37,711

(1,812)
35,899

22,114
48,842

7.646

63.310
(27,411)
(758,602)

(786,013)

Percent
Change

0.86%

(6.11)%
0.81%

1.26%
1.58%
(2.34)%
1.22%
3.61%
(3.34)%

(3.58)%

The State of New Jersey requires local authorities to prepare and adopt annual budgets in accordance with
the Local Authorities Fiscal Control Law and regulations adopted by the Local Finance Board pursuant to this
statute and codified as N.LLA.C, 5:31-1 et seq. The statutory budget was designed to demonstrate to the
Bureau of Authority Regulation of the Division of Local Government Services that the cash flows of the
Authority for the coming year will be sufficient to cover operating expenses, interest accruing on bonded
indebtedness and cash payments of maturing bond and loan principal.




MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Budgetary Highlights (Continued)

The following tables provide a budget comparison for FY 2020 and FY 2019:

Budget vs. Actual

FY 2020
Budget Actual Variance
Revenues;
Net Position Appropriated 107,978 107,978 0
Operating 4,461,402 4,461,402 0
Nou-Operating 15,032 15,032
Total Revenues 4.569.380 4,584,412 15032
Expenses:
Operating , 3,455,458 3,110,351 345,107
Non-Operating 1,113.922 _ 1,089.541 24,381
Total Expenses 4,569.380 4,199.892 . 369.488
Income before Depreciation 384,520 384.520
Budget vs. Actual
FY 2019
Budget Actual Variance
Revenues:
Net Position Appropriated 107,978 107,978 0
Operating 4,427,402 4,427,430 28
Non-Operating 21,061 21,061
Total Revenues 4,535,380 4.556.469 21.08%
Expenses:
Operating 3,412,500 3,098,076 314,424
Non-Operating 1,122 880 1,096.195 26,685
Total Expenses . 4.535.380 4,194,271 341,109
Income before Depreciation =0 362,198 M

-10-




MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

During fiscal year 2020, the Authority had an increase of $1,153,281 in capital assets (before
depreciation). The Authority’s net property, plant and equipment at fiscal year end was $23,875,337.
This is a $462,034 decrease under last year’s net property, plant and equipment of $24,337,371. A
summary of the Authority’s capital assets is presented in the following table:

CAPITAL ASSETS
FY FY Dollar
2020 2019 Change
Land 505,700 505,700 0
Buildings and Interceptors 61,280,533 61,280,533 0
Machinery and Equipment 201,060 201,060 0
Less: Accumutated Depreciation (39,721,048) (38,105,733) (1,615,315)
Construction in Progress 1,609,092 455,811 1,153,281
23,875,337 24,337,371 (462,034)

A11-




MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (Continued)

The Authority’s on going capital plan is reviewed each year by the Authority’s consulting engineer. Notable
future capital improvements are listed below.

Sewer
U.V. Disinfection $850,000
Screenings Project 1,598,890
Tertiary Treatment - Microscreen Replacement 3,374,500
Clarifier Rehabilitation 1,950,000
Pump Station(s) Renewals 250,000
Aerator Study 40,000
Shudge Mixing Drive and Shaft 87,500
Lighting - Plant and Buildings 195,000
CCTYV Inspection and Cleaning Collection System 195,000
HVAC System and Boiler 100,000
Total $8.640,890

Debt Administration

At December 31, 2020, the Authority had outstanding New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Fund bonds
of $2,145,403 (gross). The debt service schedule has a final maturity in 2030. Full details of the specific bond
issues outstanding are found in Note 5 to the financial statements and the supplementary schedules. The
Authority also had $6,000,000 in temporary financing through the New Jersey Infrastructure Bank (“NJIB”)
at December 31, 2020.

Economic Factors, Future Years’ Budgets and Rates

The Commissioners and management of the Authority consider many factors when preparing each year’s
budget and annual charges. Two of the main factors are growth in the Authority’s system and new regulations
issued by the State and Federal governments. The Authority is also monitoring the overall effects of the
COVID-19 pandemic, as described in the notes to the financial statements (Note 14).

Contacting the Authority
This financial report is designed to provide our customers and creditors with a general overview of the
Authority’s finances and to demonstrate the Authority’s accountability for the fees it receives. Ifyou have any

questions about this report or need additional information, contact the Executive Director of the Musconetcong
Sewerage Authority,110 Continental Drive, Budd Lake, NJ 07828.

-12-
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MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY EXHIBIT A

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION Page 1 of 3
DECEMBER 31,
2020 2019
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Unrestricted:
Cash and Cash equivalents $ 2,497,117 % 2,514,859
Petty Cash 150 150
Accounts Receivable - 100
Prepaid Expenses 180 180
Total Unrestricted Assets 2,497,447 2,515,289
Restricted:
Bond Service Fund:
Cash and Cash equivalents 48,069 59,962
Escrow Fund:
Cash and Cash equivalents 9,803 8,583
New Jersey Infrastucture Bank:
NJIB Receivable 5,584,013 6,000,000
Total Resiricted Assets 5,641,975 6,068,545
Non-Current Assets:
Capital Assets:
Land 505,700 505,700
Infrastructure, Buildings and Equipment 61,280,533 61,280,533
Vehicles 201,060 201,060
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (39,721,048) (38,105,733)
Construction in Progress 1,609,002 455811
Total Capital Assets 23,875,337 24,337,371
TOTAL ASSETS 5 32,014,759 % 32,921,205

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred Ouiflows; .
Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions 329,952 521,422
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES $ 329,952 $ 521,422

The accompanying "Notes to the Financial Statements" are an integral part of this report.
-13-




MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31,

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Pavable from Unrestricted Assets:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Accounts Payable - Pension Related
Payroll Taxes Payable
Due to Municipalities

Total Payable from Unrestricted Assets

Payable from Restricted Assets:
Accounts Payable - Construction
Accrued Interest Payable
Escrow Deposits Payable

Notes Payable
Loans Payable - Current Portion

Total Payabled from Restricted Assets

Non-Current Liabilities:
Compensated Absenses Payable
Net Pension Liability
Loans Payable - Long-Term Portion

Total Non-Current Liabilities

TOTAL LTABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflows:
Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions
Unamortized Gain on Refunded Debt

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

'

The accompanying "Notes to the Financial Statements” are an integral patt of this report.

-14-

EXHIBIT A
Page 2 of 3
2020 2019
143,037 274,922
87,100 105,110
8,847 10,364
276,542 254,220
515,526 644,616
413,662 -

23,518 30,710
9,803 8,583
6,000,000 6,000,000
666,177 638,837
7,113,250 6,678,130
61,681 49,512
1,394,376 1,861,226

1,479,226 2,145,402 -
2,035,283 4,056,140
10,564,059 11,378,886
991,342 804,022
10,200 17,000
1,001,542 011,022




MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY

EXHIBIT A

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION Page 3 of 3
DECEMEBER 31,
2020 2019
NET POSITION:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 20,890,085 21,536,132
Restricted:
Current Debt Service 24,551 29,252
TUnrestricted:
Designated 1,223,367 1,146,999
Undesignated {1,358,893) (1,559,664)
TOTAL NET POSITION 3 20,779,110 % 21,152,719

The accompanying "Notes to the Financial Statements” are an integral part of this report.
panyin; gral p P
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MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY EXHIBIT B
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES '
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

DECEMBER 31,
2020 2019

Operating Revenune:

Service Agreements b 4,461,402 3 4,427.402

Miscellaneous - 28
Total Cperating Revenue ' 4,461,402 4,427,430
Operating Expenses:

Administrative and General 215,681 258,829

Cost of Providing Services 2,698,600 2,887,887

Depreciation Expense 1,615,315 - 1,774,818
Total Operating Expenses 4,529,596 4,921,534
Operating Income (68,194) {494,104)
Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses):

Interest on Investments 15,032 21,061

Interest Expense {(50,705) (65,550)

Excess Due to Municipalities (276,542) (254,220}

Amortization 6,800 6,800 .
Non-Operating Income (Loss) (305,415) (291,909)
Change In Net Position {373,609) (786,013)
Net Position - January 1 : 21,152,719 21,938,732

Net Position - December 31 b3 20,779,110 $ 21,152,719

The accompanying "Notes to the Financial Statements" are an integral part of this report.

-16-




MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash Received from Customers
Cash Received from Miscellaneous Sources
Escrow Deposits Received (Paid)
Cash Paid to Municipalities
Cash Paid to Vendors and Employees

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
Interest Received

Net Cash Provided by (used in) Investing Activities
Cash Flow from Financing Activities:
Principal Payment on Bonds and Notes
Interest Paid on Bonds and Notes
NIEIT Received
Capital Expenditures
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

Analysis of Balance:
Unrestricted
Restricted

The accompanying "Notes to the Financial Statements" are an integral part of this report.

EXHIBIT C

Page 1 of 2
2020 2019
4,461,502 4,673,169
- 28
1,310 530
(254,220) (229,736)
{3,231,584) {3,029,661)
977,008 1,414,330
15,032 21,061
15,032 21,061
(638,836) (630,645)
(57,897) (73,271)
415,987
(739,619) (393,045)
(1,020,365) (1,096,961)
(28,325) 338,430
2,583,404 2,244,974
2,555,079 2,583,404
2,497,117 2,514,859
57,962 68,545
2,555,079 2,583,404




MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation Expense
Bscrow Deposits Received (Paid)
Cash Paid to Municipalities
Decrease (Increase) in Accounts Receivable
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Compensated Absenses Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Pension Adjustment

Total Adjustments

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The accompanying "Notes to the Financial Statements” are an integral part of this report.

-18-

EXHIBIT C

Page2 of 2
2020 2019
(68,194) % (494,104)
1,615,315 1,774,818
1,310 330
{254,220} {229,736)
100 245,767
(133,402) 76,407
12,169 (7,992)
{196,070) 48,640
1,045,202 1,908,434
977,008 8 1,414,330
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MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 1. GENERAL

The Musconetcong Sewerage Authority was created under the Sewerage Authorities Law of the State
of New Jersey (Chapter 138, Laws of 1946 as amended and supplemented) to service the Borough
of Stanhope in the County of Sussex and the Borough of Netcong in the County of Morris. Parallel
ordinances were adopted by the respective governing bodies as follows: By the Borough of Stanhope
on September 27, 1965, and by the Borough of Netcong on August 3, 1965

By agreement between the Authority and the Boroughs of Stanhope and Netcong dated 1967, the
Authority constructed a trunk sewer system and a 500,000 G.P.D. sewerage disposal plant. Said
construction was financed by a bond issue of $591,000 dated January 1, 1971 (Series “A” Bonds) and
by State and Federal Grants.

The aforementioned agreement also permits the signing of agreements to service additional
municipalities as Customers of the Authority, The Authority has entered into an agreement with the
Township of Mount Olive and has passed a resolution to treat sewerage from the Township of
Roxbury.

A 500,000 G.P.D. addition was placed in service on July 5, 1976. To finance the cost of said
improvement the Authority sold bonds in the amount of $400,000 dated July 1, 1976 (Series “B”
Bonds),

The governing body of the Authority consists of twelve members, Three members are appointed by
each of the governing bodies of the Boroughs of Netcong and Stanhope, two members are appointed
by each of the governing bodies of the Township of Mount Olive and Roxbury and one member is
appointed by the governing bodies of the Boroughs of Mount Arlington and Hopatcong,

The Authority has constructed a 2.2 million gallon per day water pollution control plant and made
improvements to existing pumping station and force mains. The Authority also constructed a new
regional interceptor, pumping stations and force mains, The total cost for the Project was estimated
at $33 Million,

The Project allowed for new sewer unit connections in the Boroughs of Stanhope and Netcong,.
Service has been expanded to provide more gallonage to areas located in the Township of Mount
Olive and the International Trade Zone. Additionally, sewer service is now available to the entire
Landing-Shore Hills and Port Mortis sections of Roxbury Township.

The Authority was awarded a grant from the United States Department of Environmental Protection
to the extent of 55% of eligible costs of the Project. The remainder of the Project costs were raised
by the issuance of revenue bonds in the amount of $17,450,000 and by contributions from the
International Trade Center, located within the Service Area of the Authority.
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MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 1. GENERAL, (continued)

In 1993 the Authority initiated design and funding of the Phase IA project to expand the Authority’s
existing wastewater treatment plant to provide 3.63 MGD treatment capacity within the existing plant
site, The additional treatment eapacity (1.43 MGD) was constructed to provide sewer service to the
densely developed areas around Budd Lake within the Township of Mount Olive and within the
Borough of Mount Arlington adjacent to Lake Hopatcong. The treatment plant expansion also
includes capacity for future development within the portions of the Township of Roxbury and the
New Jersey Foreign Trade Zone. The selected treatment process for the treatment plant expansion is
conventional activated sludge with mechanical aeration, the same as the existing treatment process.
The treatment process design includes - provisions for nitrification, phosphorus removal,
microstraining facilities and ultraviolet disinfection. Treated effluent will continue to be discharged
to the Musconetcong River through the existing post aeration cascade unit and outfall sewer. In 2002,
the Authority was successful in having the plant rerated adding an additional .18 MGD to the overall
treatment capacity, '

Sewage sludge generated by the expanded wastewater treatment plant will be treated in the existing
sludge thickening and handling facility at the plant site. The existing sludge thickening and handling
facility has sufficient capacity to accommodate all sludge that will be generated by the 4.31 MGD
treatment plant.

Funding for the Phase 1A project was financed by the issuance of Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series C,
in the amount of $3,545,000 for the local ineligible share and by New Jersey Wastewater Treatment
Trust Financing Program loans from the Trust ($7,955,000) and from the Fund ($6,260,617) for the
allowable costs of the new project,

In November of 1995, $2,280,000 of Series C, Revenue Bonds were defeased since the Authority
became eligible for additional New Jersey Wastewater Treatment Trust Financing, $1,190,000 from
the Trust and $1,045,037 from the fund.

On December 15,2002, $12,855,000 of Series B, Refunding Bonds were defeased with the issuance
of $12,250,000 of Project I- Series 2002, Refunding Bonds.

In 2002, Authority initiated design and funding for the Phase IIA project to add an additional 500,000
gallon per day expansion to its wastewater treatment plant for the benefit of the Borough of
Hopatcong. The Authority financed the cost of the project with grants from the United States

Environmental Infrastructure Trust Program, The addition was certified for operation effective July 1,
2005.

As a Public body under existing statute, the Authority is exempt from both Federal and State Taxes.
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MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 1. GENERAL, {continued)

Component Unit

In evaluating how to define the Authority for financial reporting purposes, management has
considered all potential component units. The decision to include any potential component units in
the financial reporting entity was made by applying the criteria set forth in GASB Statements No. 14,
The Financlal Reporting Entity, as amended by GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether
Ceriain Organizations are Component Units, and GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting
Entity: Omnibus - an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34. Blended component units,
although legally separate entitics, are in-substance part of the government's operations. Each
discretely presented component unit would be or is reported in a separate column in the financial
statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the government.

The basic-but not the only-criterion for including a potential component unit within the reporting
entity is the governing body's ability to exercise oversight responsibility. The most significant
manifestation of this ability is financial interdependency. Other manifestations of the ability to
exercise oversight responsibility include, but are not limited to, the selection of governing authority,
the designation of management, the ability to significantly influence operations, and accountability
for fiscal matters. A second criterion used in evaluating potential component units is the scope of
public service, Application of this criterion involves considering whether the activity benefits the
government and/or its citizens.

A third criterion used to evaluate potential component units for inclusion or exclusion from the
reporting entity is the existence of special financing relationships, regardless of whether the
government is able to exercise oversight responsibilities. Finally, the nature and significance of a
potential component unit to the primary government could warrant its inclusion within the reporting
entity.

Based upon the application of these criteria, the Authority has no component units.

NOTE 2. SUMMARY O¥ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES

The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies:

A. Basis of Presentation
The financial statements of the Musconetcong Sewerage Authority have been prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) applicable to enterprise funds

of state and local governmental units. Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that
are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the
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MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

A.

.

Basis of Presentation, {continued)

intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing
services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through
user charges, or where the governing body has decided that the periodic determination of
revenues eatned, expenses incutred, and ot net income is appropriate for capital maintenance,
public policy, accountability or other purposes. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board
GASB is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and
financial reporting principles. The significant of the Authority’s accounting policies are
described below,

On January 1, 2012, the Authority adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No, 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources,
Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, which amends the net asset reporting
requirement of Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management’s Discussion
and Analysis - for State and Local Governments, and other pronouncements by incorporating
deferred outflows from resources and deferred inflows of resources into the definitions of the
required components of the residual measure and by renaming that measure as net position,
rather than net assets. The classifications of net position are defined as follows:

Net investment in capital assets - This component of net position consists of capital assets,
including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the
outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable
to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. If there are any significant
unspent related debt proceeds at year-end, the portion of the debt attributable to the unspent
proceeds are not included in the calculation of invested in capital assets, net of related debt.
Rather that portion of the debt is included in the same net position component as the unspent
proceeds,

Restricted - This component of net position consists of constraints placed on net position used
through external constraints imposed by creditors (such as through debt convents), grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

»  Unrestricted - This component of net position consists of net position that do not meet the

definition of “restricted” or “net investment in capital assets.”
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MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

B,

Basis of Accounting

The Musconetcong Sewerage Authority prepares its financial statements on the accrual basis
of accounting in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Under the accrual
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when they are earned and expenses are recognized
when the liability is incurred.

Reporting Entity

The Authority’s financial statements include the accounts of all Authority operations. The
primary critetion for including activities within the Authority’s reporting entity, is set forth in
Section 2100 of the GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting
Standards. Based on this criteria, the Authority is a legally separate organization and has no
component units.

Risks of Loss

The Authority purchases commercial insurance policies on an annual basis to handle risks of
loss associated with property, auto, liability, workers: compensation, flood damage, and
employee crime coverage, Any potential liability of the Authority with respect to loss claims
would be equal to the deductibles associated with the policies and an event, which may exceed
policy coverage limits. :

Grants

Contributions received from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency and N.J. Department
of Environmental Protection are recorded in the period in which they are awarded.

Grants receivable, if any, represent the total grant awards less amounts collected to date.
Grants, if any, not internally restricted and utilized to finance operations are identified as non-
operating revenue, Grants externally restricted for non-operating purposes are recorded as
confributed capital and identified as grants-in-aid.

Inventories of Materials and Supplies
The cost of inventories, primarily chemicals for the treatment of sewerage and sludge, are

recorded as expenditures at the time individual items are purchased, since they are not material
to the results of operations and financial position.
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MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

G.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, Plant and Equipment is stated at cost which includes direct construction costs and
other expenditures related to construction. Land is stated at approximate fair market value as
of the date it was donated to the Authority or at the purchase price if purchased by the
Authority.
System construction costs are charged to construction in progress until such time as given
segments of the system are completed and placed into operation,
Depreciation is determined on a straight-line basis for all plant and equipment. Depreciation
is provided over the following estimated useful lives:
Building and Improvements 20-50 Years
Sewer Mains and Interceptors 50 Years
Machinery and Equipment 10-20 Years
Furniture and Fixtures 5 Years
Vehicles 3-10 Years
Depreciation on assets acquired with grants-in-aid and contributed capital assets is recorded as
a reduction of contributed capital,
A summary of the changes in property, plant and equipment at December 31, 2020 and 2019 are
as follows:
Balance Balance
12/31/19 Additigns Deletions 12/31/20
Land $305,700 p $ $505,700
Infrastructare, Buildings & Equipment 61,280,533 61,280,533
Vehicles 201,060 201,060
Construction in Progress 455811 1,153,281 1.609.092
62,443,104 1,153,281 0 63,596,385
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (38,105.733) (1.615,315) (39,721.048)
Total Capital Assets $24,337,371 {$462,034) 80 $23,875,337
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MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

G. Property, Plant and Equipment, (continued)

Balance Balance
12/31/18 Additions Deletions 12/31/19
Land : $5035,700 $ $ $505,700
Infrastructure, Buildings & Equipment 60,838,231 442,302 61,280,533
Vehicles 201,060 201,060
Construction in Progress 505,068 393,045 442,302 455,811
62,050,059 835,347 442302 62,443,104
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (36,330,915) (1,774 .818) (38,105,733)
Total Capital Assets $25,719,144 (5939471) $442,302 $24,337.371

- H, Restricted Accounts

Bond Service Fund

This fund was established to provide funds for the current debt service reserve requirement.
Escrow Fund

This account was established for developer escrow deposits and related disbursements.

The Authority has established the following designated unrestricted accounts:

Future Retirement Reserve

This fund was established to plan for the upcoming retirements of contracted personnel. Payments
to employees who retire with unused sick and/or vacation time up to a maximum.of $15,000.

Capital Improvement Reserve

This account was established to fund future plant upgrades and other capital improvements.

Renewal and Replacement Reserve

This account was established to fund major repairs, renewals or maintenance items of a type not
recurring annually,

-25.




MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

H.

K.

Restricted Accounts, (continued)

Operations Reserve

The fund was established to provide a reserve for future operations.
Unamortized Gain on Refunded Debt

Gains on refunded debt are being amortized over the remaining life of the issues.

Operating Fand Budget

The budget amounts included in the statement of budget revenues and statement of budget
expenditures were approved in accordance with the requirements of the “Local Finance Boatd” of
the State of New Jersey, and were adopted by the Commissioners after legal advertisement and
public hearing,

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generaily accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the statement of net position, and reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. These estimates and assumptions include depreciation
expense, the allowance for doubtful accounts and certain claims and judgment liabilities, among
other accounts, Estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically and the effects of revisions
are reflected in the financial statements in the period they are determined to be necessary. Actual
results may differ from those estimates.

Risk of Loss

The Authority purchases commercial insurance policies on an annual basis to handie risks of loss
associated with property, auto, liability, workers compensation, flood damage and employee crime
coverage. Any potential liability of the Authority with respect to loss claims would be equal to the
deductibles associated with policies and an event, which may exceed policy coverage limits.

Sick and Vacation Leave

The Authority’s policies regarding sick time permit employees to accumulate earned but unused sick
leave with total payment not to exceed fifieen thousand dollars. The proprietary fund reports the
liability as it is incurred.
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MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)
N. Net Position

Net position represent the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt consists
of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any
borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net position are
reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling
legislation adopted by the Authority or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors
or laws or regulations of other governments, '

. Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2020, the Government Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 95,
Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance, The primary objective of this
Statement is to provide temporary relief to governments and other stakeholders in light of the
COVID-19 pandemic. That objective is accomplished by postponing the effective dates of certain
provisions in Statements and Implementation Guides that first became effective or are scheduled to
become effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2018, and later. The effective dates of certain
provisions contained in the following pronouncements are postponed by one year; Statement No.
83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations,; Statement No, 84, Fiduciary Aciivities, Statement No.
88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements;
Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Consiruction Period;
Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests; Statement No, 91, Conduit Debt Obligations, Statement
No, 92, Omnibus 2020; Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates; Implementation
Guide No. 2017-3, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions (and Certain Issues Related to OPEB Plan Reportingj; Implementation Guide No. 2018-
1, Implementation Guidance Update—2018; Implementation Guide No. 2019-1, Implementation
Guidance Update—2019; Implementation Guide No. 2019-2, Fiduciary Activities. The effective
dates of the following pronouncements are postponed by 18 months: Statement No. 87, Leases,
Implementation Guide No. 2019-3, Leases, The requirements of this Statement are effective
immediately.

In May 2020, the Government Accounting Standards Board issued GASB_Statement No. 96,
Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements, This Statement provides guidance on
the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based information technology arrangements
(SBITAs) for government end users (governments). This Statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2)
establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription asset—an intangible asset—and a
corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other than
subscription payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures
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MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

0. Recent Accounting Pronouncements, (continued)

regarding a SBITA. To the extent relevant, the standards for SBITAs are based on the standards
established in Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended. The requirements of this Statement are
effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022, The Authority is still determining the effects,
if any, this statement will have on future financial statements.

In June 2020, the Government Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No, 97, Certain
Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code
Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans — An Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84,
and a Supersession of GASB Statement No, 32. The primary objectives of this Statement are to (1)
increase consistency and comparability related to the reporting of fiduciary component units in
circumstances in which a potential component unit does not have a governing board and the primary
government performs the duties that a governing board typically would perform; (2) mitigate costs
associated with the reporting of certain defined contribution pension plans, defined contribution other
postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans, and employee benefit plans other than pension plans or
OPEB plans (other employee benefit plans) as fiduciary component units in fiduciary fund financial
statements; and (3) enhance the relevance, consistency, and comparability of the accounting and
financial reporting for Internal Revenue Code (TRC) Section 457 deferred compensation plans
(Section 457 plans) that meet the definition of a pension plan and for benefits provided through those
plans. The requirements of this Statement that (1) exempt primary governments that perform the
duties that a governing board typically performs from treating the absence of a governing board the
same as the appointment of a voting majority of a governing board in determining whether they are
financially accountable for defined contribution pension plans, defined contribution OPEB plans, ot
other employee benefit plans and (2) limit the applicability of the financial burden criterion in
paragraph 7 of Statement 84 to defined benefit pension plans and defined benefit OPEB plans that
are administered through trusts that meet the criteria in paragtaph 3 of Statement 67 or-paragraph 3
of Statement 74, respectively, are effective immediately. The requirements of this Statement that are
related to the accounting and financial reporting for Section 457 plans are effective for fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2021. For purposes of determining whether a primary government is
financially accountable for a potential component unit, the requirements of this Statement that
provide that for all other arrangements, the absence of a governing board be treated the same as the
appointment of a voting majority of a governing board if the primary government performs the duties
that a governing board typically would perform, are effective for reporting periods beginning after
June 15,2021, Earlier application of those requirements is encouraged and permitted by requirement
as specified within this Statement. The Board considered the effective dates for the requirements of
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MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

0.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements, (continued)

this Statement in light of the COVID-19 pandemic and in concert with Statement No.
95, Posiponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance, The Authority is
currently reviewing what effect, if any, this Statement might have on future financial statements,

Revenues and Expenses

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items, Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues of the Authority are charges to customers for services, Operating expenses include the cost
of operations and services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All revenue
and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. State
and federal grants for the operation of the Authority are considered operating revenues. Transactions
or other events that are both unusual in nature and infrequent in occurrence are reported as
extraordinary items,

NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in banks and all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three
months or less at the time of purchase and are stated at cost plus accrued interest.

N.J.S.A, 17:9-41 et, seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of governmental units,
The statute requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in a public depository unless
such funds are secured in accordance with the Act. Public depositories include Savings and Loan
institutions, banks (both state and national banks) and savings banks the deposits of which are federally
insured. All public depositories must pledge collateral, having a market value at least equal to five
percent of the average daily balance of collected public funds, to secure the deposits of Governmental
Units. If a public depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of all other public
depositories, is available to pay the full amount of their deposits to the Governmental Units.
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MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, (continued)

In addition to the above collateral requirement, if the public funds deposited exceed 75% of the capital
funds of the depository, the depository must provide collateral having a market value at least equal to
100% of the amount exceeding 75%.

All collateral must be deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, The Federal Reserve Bank
of Philadelphia, the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York, or a banking institution that is a member of
the Federal Reserve System and has capital funds of not less than $25,000,000.

Asof December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Authority’s cash and cash equivalents are summarized as follows:

2020 019
Unrestricted $2,497,117 $2,514,859
Restricted 57.962 68.545
$2.555.079 $2.583.404

The carrying amount of the Authority’s cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2020 was $2,555,079
and the bank balance was $2,683,065. This entire amount was covered by federal depository insurance
and the collateral pool maintained by the banks as required by New Jersey Statutes,

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government’s deposit may not be
returned to it, The Authority’s policy is based on New Jersey statutes requiring cash be deposited only
in New Jersey based on banking institutions that participate in New Jersey Governmental Depository
Protection Act (GUDPA) or in a qualified investment established in New Jersey Statutes 40A:5-15.1(a)
that are treated as cash equivalents. As of December 31, 2020, $-0- of the Authority’s bank balance of
$2,683,065 was exposed to custodial risk,
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MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 4. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The Authority bills participant customers on a quarterly basis, Credits are issued during the year if the
previous year’s budgetary revenues exceed expenses, less any net position utilized for budget purposes.
The Authority had the following accounts receivable at December 31, 2020 and 2019

Balance Annual Municipal Amounts Balance

Jan, 1, 2020 Billings - Credits Received Dec.31, 2020

Township of Byram $100 $94,434 ($5,993) $88,539 50
Borough of Hopatcong - 995,865 (34,266) 961,599 -
Borough of Mount Arlington - 307,179 (19,496) 287,683 -
Township of Mount Olive - 1,426,986 (90,569) 1,336,417 -
Borough of Netcong - 420,742 {26,704) 394,038 -
Township of Roxbury - 713,958 (45,314) 668,644 -
Borough of Stanhope - 502,238 (31,876) 470,362 -

$10¢  $4.461.402 ($254,220} $4.207.282 $0

Balance Annual Municipal Amounts Balance

Jan, 1,2019 Billings Credits Received Dec.31, 2019

Township of Byram ) $ - . $93,547 ($5,416) $88,031 $100
Borough of Hopatcong 245,867 994,439 (30,966) 1,209,340 -
Borough of Mount Arlington . - 304,292 (17,619) 286,673 -
Township of Mount Olive - 1,413,573 (81,846) 1,331,727 -
Borough of Netcong - 416,787 (24,132) 392,655 “
Township of Roxbury - 707,247 (40,930) 666,297 -
Borough of Stanhope - 497.517 {28.806) 468,711 -

$245.867  $4.427.402 ($229,735) $4.443.434 $100

NOTE 5. BONDS AND NOTES PAYABLE

The Authority has issued and outstanding the following bonds as of December 31, 2020 and 2019:

Amounts
Balance Retirements/ Balance Due Within
Jan, 1, 2020 Repayments Dec. 31, 2020 One Year
Series 2002 NJ Envir. Trust &
Fund Bonds $1,298,065 $416,924 $881,141 $432,825
Series 2007 NJ Envir, Trust & .
TFund Bonds 409,891 130,097 279,794 137,537
Series 2010 NJ Envir. Trust &
Fund Bonds 1,076,283 91,815 984,468 95,815
$2.784,239 $638.836 $2,145,403 $666,177
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MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 202( AND 2019

NOTE 5. BONDS AND NOTES PAYABLE, (continued)

Amounts
Balance Retirements/ Balance Due Within
Jan, [, 2019 Repayments Dec. 31,2019 One Year
Series 2002 NJ Envir, Trust &
Fund Bonds $1,706,638 $408,573 $1,298,065 $416,924
Series 2007 NJ Envir, Trust &
Fund Bonds 542,148 132,257 409,891 130,097
Series 2010 NJ Envir. Trust &
Fund Bonds 1,166,098 89.815 1.076,283 91,815
$3.414.884 $630,645 $2.784.239 $638.836

Presented below is a summary of debt service requirements to maturity for all permanently financed bonds:

Year Principal [nterest Total
2021 666,177 56,443 722,620
2022 686,388 37,958 724,346
2023 95,815 19,085 114,900
2024 99,815 17,035 116,850
2025 99,815 14,785 114,600
2026 104,813 12,535 117,350
2027-2030 392,578 25,290 417.868
$2,145,403 $183.131 $2.328,534

Series 2002A NJ Environmental Infrastracture Trust Bonds
On October 15,2002 , the Authority issued $6,306,851 Series 2002A Subordinate Bonds through the New
- Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust Program. These bonds are being used for improvements to the

treatment facilities,

Principal and interest due on 011tstand}ng 2002 A bonds to maturity is as follows;

NIEIT SERIES 2002A
Year Trust Portion Fund Portion Total
Ending Principal Interest Principal Debt Service
2021 $252,289 $25,658 $180,536 $458,483
2022 266.695 12,923 181,621 461,239
$518.984 $38.581 $362,157 $919.722




MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 5. BONDS AND NOTES PAYABLE, (continued)

Series 2007A NJ Environmental Infrastructure Trust Bonds

OnNovember 8, 2007 the Authority issued $1,796,790 Series 2007 A Subordinate Bonds through the New
Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust Program. These bonds are being used for improvements to the
treatment facilities. On February 1, 2016, these bonds were internally refunded by the New Jersey
Environmental Infrastructure Trust, resulting in a savings of $40,000 in principal and $8,206 in interest,

Principal and interest due on outstanding 2007A bonds to maturity is as follows:

NIEIT SERIES 2007A
Year Trust Portion Fund Portion Total
Ending Principal Interest Principal Debt Service
2021 $74.000 $7,600 $63,537 $145,137
2022 78.000 3.900 64,257 146.157
$152.000 $11.500 $127.794 $291.294

Series 2010B NJ Environmental Infrastructure Trust Bonds

On December 2, 2010, the Authority issued $2,281,703 Series 201 0B Subordinate Bonds through the New
Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust Program. These bonds included $186,838 in fund principal
forgiveness.

Prineipal and interest due on outstanding 2020 bonds to maturity is as follows:

NJEIT SERIES 2010B

Year Trust Portion Fund Portion Total
Ending Principal Interest Principal Debt Service
2021 $41,000 $23,185 $54,815 $119,000
2022 41,000 21,135 54,815 116,950
2023 41,000 19,085 54,815 114,900
2024 45,000 17,035 54,815 116,850
2025 45,000 14,785 54,815 114,600
2026 50,000 12,535 54,815 117,350
2027 55,000 10,035 54,815 119,850
2028 55,000 7,560 54,815 117,375
2029 55,000 5,085 54,208 114,293
2030 58.000 2,610 5.740 66,350
$486.000 $133.050 $498.468 $1.117.518
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 5. BONDS AND NOTES PAYABLE, (continued)

Notes Payable - New Jersey Infrastructure Bank

On June 27, 2019, the Authority adopted a resolution authorizing the issuance of $6,500,000 subordinate
bonds for the influent/effluent facilities project (NJIB Project S340 384-09). On November 21,2019, the
New Jersey Infrastructure Bank granted temporary financing for this project in the amount of $6,000,000.
As of December 31, 2020, the Authority has drawn $415,987 down on this temporary financing.

NOTE 6. PENSION PLAN

Description of Plans:

Authority employees participate in one of the two contributory, defined benefit public employee retirement
systems: the State of New Jersey Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) or the Defined
Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP), a tax-qualified defined contribution money purchase pension
plan under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) 401(a).

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS)

Plan Description

The State of New Jersey Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) is a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of New Jersey, Division of Pensions and
Benefits (the "Division"). For additional information about the PERS, please refer to the Division's
- Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) which can be found at

www state, nj.us/treasury/pensions/annrpts.shtml,

Benefits Provided

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A. PERS provides retirement, death and
disability benefits, All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical benefits, which vest after

25 years of service or under the disability provisions of PERS. The following represents the membership
tiers for PERS:

Tier Definition

1 Members who were enrolled prior to July 1, 2007

2 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 and prior to November 2, 2008
3 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to May 22, 2010
4 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22, 2010 and prior to June 28, 2011
5 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 2011
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 6. PENSION PLANS, (continued)

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS), (continued)

Service retirement benefits of 1/55" of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to Tiers
1 and 2 membets upon reaching age 60 and to Tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. Service retitement
benefits of 1/60™ of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to Tier 4 members upon
reaching age 62 and to Tier 5 members upon reaching age 65. Early retirement benefits are available to
Tiers 1 and 2 members before reaching age 60, to Tiers 3 and 4 before age 62 with 25 or more years of
service credit and Tier 5 with 30 or more years of service credit before age 65. Benefits are reduced by a
fraction of a percent for each month that a member retires prior to the age at which a member can receive
full eatly retirement benefits in accordance with their respective tier. Tier I members can receive an
unreduced benefit from age 55 to age 60 if they have at least 25 years of service. Deferred retirement is
available to members who have at least 10 years of service credit and have not reached the service retirement
age for the respective tier,

Defined Contribution Retirement Program

Prudential Financial jointly administers the DCRP investments with the NJ Division of Pensions and
Benefits, If an employee is ineligible to enroll in the PERS or PFRS, the employee may be eligible to enroll
in the DCRP, DCRP provides cligible members with a tax-sheltered, defined contribution retirement
benefit, along with life insurance and disability coverage. Vesting is immediate upon enrollment for
members of the DCRP.

The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, issues publicly
available financial reports that include the financial statements and required supplementary information of
the DCRP. The financial reports may be obtained by writing to the State of New Jersey, Department of the
Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, PO Box 293, Trenton, New Jersey, 08625-0295,

Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. Employee contributions are based
on percentages of 5.50% for DCRP of employees' annual compensation, as defined, The DCRP was
established July 1, 2007, under the provisions of Chapter 92, P.L, 2007 and expanded under the provisions
of Chapter 89, P.1.. 2008. Employee contributions for DCRP are matched by a 3% employer contribution,

Contribution Requirements

The contribution policy is set by laws of the State of New Jersey and, in most retirement systems,
contributions are required by active members and contributing employers, Plan member and employer
contributions may be amended by State of New Jersey legislation. The pension funds provide for employee
contributions based on 7.5% for PERS. Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined
rate in all Funds, The actuarially determined employer contribution includes funding for cost-of-living
adjustments and noncontributory death benefits in the PERS. In the PERS, the employer contribution
includes funding for post-retirement medical premiums.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 6. PENSION PLANS, (continued)

The Authority’s contribution to the various plans, equal to the required contributions for each year, were as
follows:

Three Year Trend Information for PERS

Annual Percentage
Year Pension of APC
Funding Cost (APC) Contributed
12/31/20 $101,018 100%
12/31/19 96,512 100%
12/31/18 96,046 100%

ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PER - GASB NO. 68

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS)

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Authority reported a liability of $1,394,376 and $1,861,226 for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020,
and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of that date. The Authority's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection
of the Authority's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions
of all participating governments, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2020, the Authority's proportion was
0.0085505770 percent, which was a decrease of 0.0017789633 percent from its proportion measured as of
June 30, 2019.

For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Authority recognized pension expense of $(95,052). At
December 31, 2020, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to PERS from the following sources:

2020 2019
Deferred Outflows of Resources:

Changes of assumptions $45,235 $185,850
Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investments 235,389 33,407
Changes in proportion and differences between Authority

contributions and proportionate share of contributions 172,228 197,055
Authority contributions subsequent to the measurement

date 87,100 105,110

Total $329,952 $521,422
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 6. PENSION PI.ANS, (continued)

ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PER - GASB NO. 68, {continued)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), (continued)

2020 2019
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Changes of assumptions $583,838 $646,026
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments 4,931 29,380
Changes in proportion and differences between Authority
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 402,573 118,193
Other deferred pension adjustments
100.423
Total $991,342 $894.022

The $87,100 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Authority
contributions subsequent to the measurement date (i.e. for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2020, the
plan measurement date is June 30, 2020) will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the
subsequent year, Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Dec. 31, 2020 Dec. 31,2019

2020 $ $(53,744)
2021 (174,969) (174,344)
2022 (159,518) (155,679)
2023 (91,160) (73,099)
2024 (36,864) (7,506)
2025 (7,973)

Changes in Proportion

The previous amounts do not include employer specific deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to changes in proportion. These amounts should be recognized (amortized) by each
employer over the average of the expected remaining service lives of all plan members, which is 5.16, 5.21,
5.63, 5.48, 5.57, 5.72 and 6.44 years for 2020, 2019, 2018, 2017, 2016, 2015 and 2014 amounts,
respectively,
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 6. PENSION PLANS, (continued)

ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR _PENSION IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PER - GASB NO. 68, (continued)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), (continued)

Additional Information

Local Group Collective balances net of nonemployer (State of New Jersey) balances at November 30, 2020
and June 30, 2019 are as follows:

Dec. 31, 2020 Dec. 31,2019
Collective deferred outflows of resources | _ | $2,347,583,337 $3,149,522,616
Collective deferred inflows of resources 7,849,949,467 7,645,087,574
Collective net pension liability 16,435,616,426 18,018,482,972
Authority's Proportion 0.0085505770% 0.0103295403%

Actuarial Assumptions

The collective total pension liability for the June 30, 2020 measurement date was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of July 1, 2019, which rolled forward to June 30, 2020, This actuarial valuation used the
following assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement.

Inflation Rate:
Price 2.75%
Wage 3.25%
Salary Increases:
Through 2026 2.00-6.00% (based on years of service)
Thereafter 3,00-7.00% (based on years of service)
Investment Rate of Return 7.00 Percent

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2019 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2019. It is likely that future experience will not
exactly conform to these assumptions. To the extent that actual experience deviates from these assumptions,
the emerging liabilities may be higher or lower than anticipated. The more the experience deviates, the
larger the impact on future financial statements.
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NOTE 6. PENSION PLANS, (continued)

ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PER - GASB NO. 68, (continued)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), (continued)

Mortality Rates

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income Employee
mortality table with an 82.2% adjustment for males and 101.4% adjustment for females, and with future
improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis, Post-retirement mortality rates were based
on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income Healthy Retiree mortality table with a 91.4% adjustment
for males and 99.7% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on
a generational basis, Disability retirement rates used to value disabled retirees were based on the Pub-2010
Non- Safety Disabled Retiree mortality table with a 127.7% adjustment for males and 117.2% adjustment
for females, and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Mortality
improvement based on Scale MP-2020.

Long-Term Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments (7.00% at
Tune 30, 2020) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division of
Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. The long-term
expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in which best-estimate ranges of
expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation)
are developed for each major asset class, These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate
of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and
by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class
included in PERS's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2020 are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
U.S. Equity 27.00% 7.71%
Non-U.S. Developed Market Equity 13.50% 8.57%
Emerging Market Equity 5.50% 10.23%
Private Equity 13.00% 11.42%
Real Assets 3.00% 9.73%
Real Estate 8.00% 9.56%
High Yield 2.00% 5.95%
Private Credit 8.00% 7.59%
Investment Grade Credit 8.00% 2.67%
Cash Equivalents 4.00% 0,50%
U.S, Treasuries 5.00% 1.94%
Risk Mitigation Strategies 3.00% 3.40%
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NOTE 6. PENSTION PLANS, (continued)

ACCOUNTING AND TFINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PER - GASB NO. 68, (continued)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), (continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00% as of June 30, 2020. The projection
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be
made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers and the nonemployer
contributing entity will be based on 78% of the actuarially determined contributions for the State employer
and 100% of actuarially determined contributions for the local employers. Based on those assumptions, the
plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied
to all projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

of the Collective Net Pension Liabili

Sensitivi to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the collective net pension liability of the participating employers as of June 30, 2020,
calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above as well as what the collective net pension liability
would be if it was calculated using a discount rate that is 1 -percentage point lower or 1- percentage-point
higher than the current rate:

June 30, 2020

1% At Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
6.00% 7.00% 8.00%
Authority's proportionate share of
the pension liability $1,769,089 $1,394,376 $1,096,689
June 30, 2019
1% At Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
5.28% 6.28% 1.28%
Authority's proportionate share of .
the pension liability $2,367,387 $1,861,226 $1,458,573
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NOTE 6. PENSION PLANS, (continued)

ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PER - GASB NO., 68, (continued)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), (continued)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued
Financial Report for the State of New Jersey Public Employees Retirement System (PERS).

NOTE 7. ACCRUED SICK AND VACATION BENEFITS

The Authority permits employees to accrue a limited amount of unused vacations and sick pay, whichmay
‘be paid upon retirement or death at an agreed-upon rate. It is estimated that the current cost of such unpaid
compensation would approximate $61,681 and $49,512 at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, This
amount is reported as a liability and it is expected that the cost of such unpaid compensations would be
included in the Authority’s budget operating expenditures in the year in which it is used or charged to its
reserve for future retirements which has a balance of $50,000 as of December 31, 2020 and 2019.

NOTE 8. RELATED PARTIES

Mr. John Sylvester, Mr. Elmer Still, Mr. Rich Schindelar, Mr, Andrew Cangiano and Tom Romano,
Commissioners of the Authority, are also Councilmen of the Boroughs of Netcong, Netcong, Hopatcong,
Mt. Arlington and Stanhope, respectively. The schedule of operating revenues includes $420,742,
$995,865, $307,179 and $502,238 of revenue from the Boroughs of Netcong, Hopatcong, Mt. Arlington
and Stanhope and the schedule of amount due to/(from) municipalities includes $29,049, $37,275, 821,208
and $34,675 due to the Boroughs of Netcong, Hopatcong, Mt. Arlington and Stanhope.

NOTE 9. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Various legal actions, proceedings and claims are pending or may be instituted or asserted against the
Authority. They are as follows:

The Authority is involved in litigation regarding the 2011 final New Jersey Pollutant Discharge
Elimination System (NJPDES) Permit Action (“Permit”) issued by the New Jersey Department of
Environmental Protection (“DEP”), In 2015 the matter was partially settled except for one unresolved
issue, the limit for nitrates. The litigation was put on hold pending issuance of the next renewal permit.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 9. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES, (continued)

In July 2020, the Authority applied to renew its Permit and a renewal Permit was issued on December 11,
2020. The nitrate limit in the new Permit, as before, is not currently being met. On January 5, 2021, the
Authority filed a Request for a Hearing and a Request for a Stay for the new Permit and awaits a response
from DEP on both, The Authority’s Engineer estimates that the cost of compliance with the nitrate limit
in the permits is somewhere in the range of $12,000,000 to $20,000,000.

While the outcome of the above noted proceedings cannot be predicted, the financial impact will become
clearer once the final nitrate limit is known. '

NOTE 10. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Musconetcong Sewerage Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage
to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

The Authority is a member of the New Jersey Utility Authorities Joint Insurance Fund (the “Fund”™). The
Fund is both an insured and self-administered group of utilities established for the purpose of providing
certain low-cost property, liability, public official's liability and workers' compensation insurance coverage
for member authorities. The Musconetcong Sewerage Authority pays an annual assessment to the Fund
and should it be determined that payments received by the Fund for deficient, additional assessments may
be levied.

The Authority continues to carry commercial insurance coverage for all other risks of loss, including
employee health and life insurance. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded
commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

NOTE 11. DESIGNATION OF UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

The Authority maintains funds that, although may be spent for any lawful purpose by the Authority, have
been designated by the Board as follows:

020 019
Designated for Future Retirement Reserve $50,000 $50,000
Designated for Capital Improvement Reserve 781,761 656,063
Designated for Renewal and Replacement Reserve 341,606 390,336
Designated for Operations Reserve 50.600 50,000
Total Designated - Unrestricted $1,223.367 $1.146,999
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NOTE 11, DESIGNATION OF UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS, (continued)

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Authority reported a total amount of $1,223,367 and $1,146,999,
respectively, of Unrestricted Net Position - Designated for the purposes described above.

The remaining, undesignated portion of the Authority's net position was comprised of the following at
December 31, 2020 and 2019: '

202 2019
Pension Related | ($2,055,766) ($2,233,826)
Available for Use in Future Budgets 696,873 674.162

($1.358.893) ($1.559.664)
NOTE 12. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Musconeicong Sewerage Authority has evaluated subsequent events through August 18, 2021, the
date which the financial statements were available to be issued and no items were noted for disclosure.

NOTE 13. INTERFUND TRANSFERS

At December 31, 2020, the following interfund transfers were outstanding between cash and reserve
accounts:

Due From Due To
Operating Account;
Due to Capital Improvement $ $99,679
Due to Renewal and Replacement 9,984
Capital Improvement Account:
Due from Operating 99,679
Due from Renewal and Replacement 2,788
Renewal and Replacement Fund:
Due from Operating 9,984
Due to Capital Improvement 2.788
$112.451 $112.451
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NOTE 14. OTHER MATTERS

On March 9, 2020, Governor Phil Murphy signed Executive Order No. 103 that declared a State of
Emergency and Public Health Emergency across all 21 counties in New Jersey in response to address the
novel coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak. At the time of this report, the overall effects of the COVID-19
pandemic are unknown. In efforts to reduce the spread of the virus, many companies and organizations
have cither reduced staff or closed down, thus creating a potential financial dilemma among many of the
ratepayers in the municipalities serviced by the Musconetcong Sewerage Authority. The Authority has
identified several risks as a result of this pandemic, including a possible delay in collection of patticipant
charges and potential cash flow shortages as the result of these delayed collections. The Authority will
continue to monitor the situation closely.
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SCHEDULE RSI-3

MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY
Notes to Required Supplementary Information
For the Year ended December 31, 2020

Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS)

Changes in Benefit Terms - None

Changes in Assumptions - The discount rate changed from 6.28% as of June 30, 2019 to 7.00%
as of June 30, 2020, in accordance with Paragraph 44 of GASB Statement No. 67,
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Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments -
January 1, 2020

Cash Receipts:
Interest on Investments
Service Charges
Miscellaneous
Escrow Deposits
Transfers

Total Cash Receipts
Cash and Investments Avaitable

Cash Disbursements:
Operations
Bond Principal Payments
Interest Payments
Capital and Other Expenses
Escrow Payments

Transfers
Total Cash Disbursements

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments -
December 31, 2020

Analysis of Balance:
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Unrestricted
Restricted

Schedule 2

Page 1 of 2
MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS, CASH DISBURSEMENTS AND
CHANGES IN CASH ANDI} INVESTMENTS
UNRESTRICTED AND RESTRICTED ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
Capital Renewal and
Operating Payroll Improvement Replacement
Account Account Accouni Account
1,595,363 24,887 561,447 393,124
15,032
4,461,502
415,987
118,749 941,500 176,934 90,016
4,595,283 941,500 595,921 90,016
6,190,646 966,387 1,157,368 483,140
2,524,928 960,876
638,836
57,897
126,215 469,528 143,476
1,314,010 8,146 8,043
4,661,886 960,876 478,074 151,519
1,528,760 5,511 679,294 331,621
1,528,760 5,511 679,294 331,621
1,528,760 5,511 679,294 331,621
1,480,691 5,511 679,294 331,621
48,069
1,528,760 3,511 579,294 331,621
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Schedule 2

Page 2 of 2
MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS, CASH DISBURSEMENTS AND
CHANGES IN CASH AND INVESTMENTS
UNRESTRICTED AND RESTRICTED ACCOUNTS
FOIRR THE YEAR ENDEDD DECEMBER 31, 2020
Escrow
Account Total

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments -

January 1, 2020 2,583 2,583,404
Cash Receipts:

Interest on Investments 15,032

Service Charges 4,461,502

Miscellaneous 415,987

Escrow Deposits 3,995 3,995

Transfers - 1,330,199
Total Cash Receipts 3,905 6,226,715
Cash and Investments Available 12,578 8,810,119
Cash Disbursements:

Operations 3,485,804

Bond Principal Payments 638,836

Interest Payments 57,897

Cepital and Other Expenses 739,619

Escrow Payments 2,685 2,685

Transfers 1,330,199
Total Cash Dishursements 2,685 6,255,040
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments -

December 31, 2020 9,893 2,555,070
Analysis of Balance: .

Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,893 2,555,079

9,893 2,555,079
Unrestricted - 2,497,117
Restricted 9,893 57,962
9,893 2,555,019

-50-




sanu2Ady [BeL .

-51-

697956 TE0°ST IV P35y 08£°69S Y 03E°69¢ Y
190°12 ZE0°ST 7E0'SL - - SJUSTIESIAT] U0 1S0I1H]
sonuoasy Junperad()-moN
wN - - - SNOAUBT[IISTIN
LIS L6Y - 8£T7T08 8£TTOS RET'TOC adotuerg Jo ySnolog
LYTLOL - 2C6°CIL 266 ¢ 1L 8COETL Amgxoy o diysumo],
L3L°9TY - TrL 0Ty Loty rL0TY SuoopN Jo ySnorog
CLE'CTHFT - 986971 986°9TF'1 98697t 3ATQ JUNOJA jo diysumoy,
T6THOE - GLTLOE 6LI°LOE 6L1°LOE uoiSm Iy JUnojA Jo gsnoiog
6L F66 - $98°666 $98°566 §98°566 FuoojedoH Jo ygnolog
LS - FEF 6 FEV Y6 FEFT6 weidg Jo diysumo],
159312 901AIRS
sonuaasy] Sunerad
8L6°LOT - 816°L0T 8L6°L0T 8L6'L01 pajendorddy uontsod 1N
ISONURAYY
ey (g BNy popuIwry P3puyg
I¥IX I011J ] S89XY I X IUALIN) se Jadpng paydopy
0707 X4 0707 XA
0707 ‘1€ SAGWADAA AAANT IVIX TAHL 404
LEDANE OL ATAVAO) AINTATI ONLILVATJIO A4
TAANNA SLS0D ANV ANNTATI ONILVATIO O ATNATHDS
ALTHOALOV IDOVEIAAS DNODILINODSON
§Jo 1 98y

€ A INAAHDS



£689 909 b61's 000°T1 000°T1 sorjddng Atojeioqe]
619°CLY €76 LLO'66T 000°00Z 000°00T s[eorwiay) pue seijddng
LEE' ST L6E'8T £09°01 (00°6T 000°62 110 eud/euedorg
299°LY 9€9°971 $98°1€E 005°85h 005°78% _ o129
SLO'TE LTS 8TLGT 000°6T 000°sT suoydapa,
$69°6T (#59) #$9°0¢ 000°0¢ 000°0€ Tooursuy
60€°91 0011 0061 000°LT 000°0Z pIy
LTY°9T T66°1 810°8¢ 000°0t 000°8¢€ [e8e
:sostadyy B0
L8LY 000°1 005 005°S 008°¢ sovemsty jusuoydmoun
218°6 086°¢ 076°¢ 006°L 006°L eomRINSU] AY[IqesI(]
T6L°LOT STHFIE 055011 SLE Y] SLETHT uonezieidsoy
06t 0¥ 168°% 601°LY 000°Z¢ 000°TS X8, AJLmoeg (008
rT L 9611 P0g6L 00018 000°T8 (S vosug
:s)jeueg o8uLLy
090°€Z9 59%°C SEOFY9 005°L99 00$°L99 Sa3B M PUE SOLE[ES
1S001AT9G SUIpLACI{ JO 18070
PIORFT LITTS 958967 £80°60¢ £80°60€ SANRNSIUNEPY [£I0L,
9PF61 €L1°9 LT8REE 000°0F 000°0 sorddng 201103
sosuadyd 10
61£°1 097 ovT’1 00S°T 005°T souemsu] juemAoydmaun
95T 850°T o'l 00T°Z 001°C aoueInsu] AN[IQEsI
$59°9T 965°6T L8E6T £86°85 £86°8¢S uopezieldsoy
FECET (I 118°¢1 DOSET 00S°ET ¥e [ ALmosg [RI00g
897°07 #12) $1T°1C 000°1T 000°1T (S43d) votsusg
syouag 23ury
PO P91 $OC°ST GEY9CT 000°CTLT 000°TLT soSep pue salefes
DANBISIURLDY
:sesuadxg Supeied)
sasmadxy
ey [(TETET)) Y papuawy sprg
xeax IoLJ J Ss0%7 IBa X JIALIND) se Jadpng paydopy
0707 XA 0707 AA
0707 “T€ HAFIWIDAJ CAANT aVAX HHE Y04
LADANT QL AHRIVANOD AANTATI ONILVIAJO A4
FHANAT SISO ANY ANNTATT ONLIVIALO 40 5 1NACTHDS
ALTEOHLAY IOVITMIS ONODLANODISNIN
3o 7adeg

€ I'INAAHDS

-52-



53

691955 (zgo'st) TP PRSP 08£°695°Y 08€°695F
861°79¢ 076 +8E 075 P8¢ - - (1oyaq) / ssexy PPV
1LT6TY 88¥°69¢ 7686617 08£°695 % 08€°695F sonueAsy FunendQ Aq ppung s3507) (2301
SHTH60°T 18€%T TIPS 6301 TTHETTT TTHELIL §1507) 19710 [2101-qNS
000°00T - 000001 000001 000°001 Juswsoe[day PUE [EASUIY
000°00% - 000°00€ 000°00% 000°00€ sjuowoaordu feynde))
“m®>.uuWOM
SHOpE9 I 9£8°8¢Y LE]'BED LE8°8E9 [edouriy 1B
0S5°69 08€%T §0L0¢ $80°CL SR0°6L astadxy 1se1a)]
FR0IATDS 1090
senusasy Sunered() Aq papung s1500) BPEO
9.0°860°¢C LOT'SFE TSE0TTE 2t CEyE 851 e’ sasuadxy Suneied( (2107,
79t 618°T 088°T6T C6¥°¢68°T SLEOKTE SLE9TI'E BODIATRS SUIPIADIJ JO 1807 [BIOL,
87S°81 000°¢T - 000°6Z 000°6T AouaBunuoy)
LSEQIL (z08v2) TO8 YL 000°0TL 000°0ZL [eAOUISY SEpRS
00€°cy 6I£S 189°89 000°vL 000°tL (reyrdea-uot) juatudmby
£L8°61 SE6F1 £90'0% 000°6F D00°0E avuer[dwo,) AL
0£0°ST 0L6' 0£0°ST 000°07 000°0T $39,{ 29USILT,
L9Y°0T 08 961%C 000°6T 000°5T 899 JHOIN
19€°66 £96°F LEO'SOT 000°01 1 000°011 SOURINSI]
8¥CTLI 699°CT 1€£°481 000°00T 000°00T sireday] pue SOUBUSIUTE]
1E€TCT P61 6551 000°0¢ 000°0€ 22 A1ojeroqe]
PE6 61 €TTTI LLL'S 00002 000°02 UoTRONpY puE SUner],
#50°€9 01p1 868°G9 000°08 000°0L $IOIAIDS [BILINXYH
S0£'sT LYTT CESLT 000°0¢ 000°0¢ ssuadxy 20130
(penunuos) sasuadxy U0
1S00IATDG SUIPIAI] JO 180))
:(penunuos) sesuadxy Funemsdo
LIEx% Grye@ [EnRy pepusmy 198png
B3 X I0LIJ / S890% B3 X JUAIIN) se }8png pardopvy
0707 A4 0Z07 X4
0207 ‘1€ WA WEDAA AIANT AVAA HHL 3404
LASAN OX TTAVANOD ZANTATH DNLLVIALO A9
QAANNA SLSOD ANV AANAATH ONILVIELO0 40 T10AAHIS
ALDNICHLAY ADVHAMAS DNODLANOCISAA
¥ J0 ¢ a8eq

£ I'INATHIS



HOOIS0] JON Ul 28Ry

spRUSTHPY [R10],

Jueunsnlpy uoIsuag
raweoe[dsy] pue [emausy
syusmsAoxdwy [eyde)
[ediourry puog

PRZIN[] UoTI0d 19N
sopedioTmiy 0] angg sseoxy
UOTRZILIOUTY

asuadxy uoneroarda(]

1 IVVO 0) siseq A1e)eSpng 10 TOREIT03Y

(£10°987) {609°€LE)
(T1z°sv1'D {671°85L)
(0v9°'87) 0L096]
000°00 1 000°001
000°00¢ 000°00¢
SFO'0ED 9ER‘REY
(8L6°L0T) (846°L0T)
(0z7T¥sT) (TH$9LT)
008°9 0089
(818°vLLT) (§1€°619°'T)
861°C9¢€ 076'¥8E -
Jenoy [ETETTEY ) [enpRy papuay }spny
Je3 ‘ﬁ. hcm.nnm _.. ww&uﬁﬂ HN@.W uﬁuhhﬂo 114 u..uwH:-m ﬁﬁ—noﬁQ
0707 XX 0707 X4
0707 ‘1€ AGIWADIA AAANT HVIX THL 404
139004 OL QTAVANOD INNHATH ONLLVIAIO X
AIANNA SESOD ANV ANNTATH ONLEVIAJC A0 TTNATAIS
ALRIOHLAV IOVIIMIS INODLANOISNAA

¥ 30  93eg
£ FINAAADS

1598 UAdX ] I9A() SINUIAIY JO SSIXH

-54.



MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL BUDGET PROGRAM

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Financing Sources:
Debt Authorization
Capital Improvement Reserve
Renewal and Replacement Reserve

Capital Ontlays:
Clarifiet's Drives
Grayvity Thickener #1 Rehab
Pump Replacement Project
CCTV
Lighting
Phase IIF Air Permit (Contract 310}
Sludge Management
NIIB Application (Contract 305)
Influent Screening (Contract 300)
Tertiary Treatment (Contract 295)
S.C. # 3 and # 4 (Contract 325)
Purchase of 19 Pumps (Contract 335}
PCSIU(Contract 350)
Air Samipling Project
Other Non-Budgeted Capita!l Expenditures
Qther Non-Budgeted Ren, & Replacement

Total Capital Outlays
Total Costs Funded by Capital Reventue

Add; Excess

FUNDED BY FINANCING SOURCES

SCHEDULE 4

FY 2020 FY 2020
Adopted Budget as Paid or Excess /
Budget Amended Charged (Deficit)
6,600,000 6,600,060 696,710 5,503,290
- 150,000 307,841 {157,841)
£95,000 745,000 148,730 596,270
7,495,000 7,495,000 1,153,281 6,341,719
150,000 150,000 “ 150,000
150,000 150,000 112,223 37,777
600,000 600,000 - 600,000
195,000 165,000 - 195,000
200,000 200,000 - 200,000
- - 3,163 (3,163)
200,000 200,000 - 200,000
- - 4,959 (4,959)
2,000,000 2,000,000 34,261 1,965,739
4,000,000 4,000,000 602,449 3,337,551
- - 138,306 (138,3006)
- - 124,406 (124,406)
- - 1,410 (1,410)
- - 11,683 (11,683)
- - 36,097 (36,097)
- - 24,324 (24,324)
7,495,000 7,495,000 1,153,281 6,341,719
7,495,000 7,495,000 1,153,281 6,341,719
7,495,000 1,153,281 6,341,719

7,495,000
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SCHEDULE 7

ROSTER OF QFFICIALS AND REPORT ON SURETY BONDS

The following officials were in office at December 31, 2020:

Name
Expires

Steven Rattner
John Sylvester
Joseph Schwab
Tom Ramano

James Benson
Michael Grogan
Brian McNeilly
Melanie Michetti
Andrew Cangiano
Michael Pucilowski
Rich Schindelar
Elmer Still

Joseph Sabatini
Michael Orgera

Patrick Dwyer
James Schilling
Thomas Carroll
John Campanile
John Napolitano
PS&S

Office

Mount Olive
Neteong
Roxbury
Stanhope

Stanhope
Netcong
Stanhope
Roxbury

Mt. Arlington
Mount Olive
Hopatcong
Netcong
Byram
Byram

Position

Chairman
Vice Chairman/Councilman
Secretary-Treasurer
Asst. Secretary-Treasurer/
Councilman
Commissioner
Commissioner
Commissioner
Commissioner
Commissioner/Councilman
Commissioner
Commissioner/Councilman
Commissioner/Councilman
Non-voting Member
Non-voting Member

Attorney

Director

Qualified Purchasing Agent
Risk Manager

Labor Attorney

Engineer

Term

1/31/2024
1/31/2023
1/31/2023

1/31/2023
1/31/2025
1/31/2025
1/31/2024
1/31/2024
1/31/2021
1/31/2023
1/31/2021
1/31/2024

All members and employees are covered by insurance policies provided through the New Jersey Utility

Authorities Joint Insurance Fund.
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WELO

WIELKOTZ & COMPANY ¢

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

STEVEN D. WIELKOTZ, CPA, RMA, PSA HEADQUARTERS RockawaYy OFFICE
MATTHEW B. WIELKOTZ, CPA, PSA 40 | WANAQUE AVENUE | OO ENTERPRISE DRIVE
PauL J. Cuva, CPA, RMA, PSA PoMPTON LAKES, NEW JERSEY Q7442 SuUITe 30|
JaMes J. CERULLO, CPA, RMA, PSA (973)-835-7900 Rockaway, NEw JERSEY O7 866
THoMas M. FERRY, CPA, RMA, PSA ofFFICE(@w-cPA.COM (©873)»-835-7900

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Chairman and Members
Musconetcong Sewerage Authority
Budd Lake, New Jersey 07828

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America;
audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Local Government Services, Department of Community
Affairs, State of New Jersey; and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
Musconetcong Sewerage Authority, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes
to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated August 18, 2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit on the financial statements, we considered the Musconetcong
Sewerage Authority’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Musconetcong Sewerage Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Musconetcong Sewerage Authority’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the
deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses to be material weaknesses

(Finding 2020-001).
WERLO
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Honorable Chairman and Members of the

Musconetcong Sewerage Authority
Page 2.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Musconetcong Sewerage Authority’s financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such
an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed one instance of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards (Finding 2020-002).

Management's Response to Findings

Musconetcong Sewerage Authority's response to the findings identified in our audit are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and responses. Management's response was not subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Wielkoty & Company, £LC

WIELKOTZ & COMPANY, LLC
Certified Public Accountants
Pompton Lakes, New Jersey

August 18, 2021

WELO
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MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Finding 2020-001:*

Conditions:

The Authority should maintain the property, plant and equipment subsidiary ledger and reconeile it to the
general ledger control account. '

Criteria:

N.J. Administrative Code Section 5:31-7.1 Accounting and Financial Reporting system requires a properly
functioning system of accounting and accounting controls,

Cause;

The Authority has not established an accounting system that records additions, deletions and depreciation
to the property, plant and equipment control account.

Effect:

The Authority's general ledger required material journal entries to correctly reflect the financial statement
balances at the end of the year,

Recommendation:

That the Authority maintain the property, plant and equipment subsidiary ledger and reconcile it to the
general ledger control account.

Authority Response:

The Authority will work with its auditor to maintain the property, plant and equipment subsidiary ledger.
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MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINCS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(CONTINUED)

Finding 2020-002:

Conditions:

Capital expenditures were made without a budgetary capital line item.

Criteria:

N.J.A.C, 5:31-2.2 states-that no Authority shall make appropriations, authorize expenditures or adopt a
security agreement for a capital project unless its provisions are in agreement with the adopted capital
budget, temporary capital budget or amended capital budget.

Cause:

The capital expenditures discussed in this finding were originally budgeted for the prior period's capital
budget. Management did not realize an amendment was required to the current year capital budget to
include these items, '

Effect:

The Authority has not complied with the N.J.A.C. 5:31-2.2.

Recommendation:

A resolution amending the capital budget should be made ﬁrior to capital expenditure.

Authority Response:

Management acknowledges the requirements of N.J.A.C. 5:31 and will amend their capital budget
accordingly in future periods.
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MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY

GENERAL COMMENTS

Contracts and Agreements Required to be Advertised Per N.J.S, 40A:11-3

N.J.S.A. 40A:11-2 contains definitions for terms used throughout N.J.S.A, 40A:11-1 et seq. and was
amended under P.L. 1999, ¢.440, 1t includes as subsection (23) the term ‘competitive contracting’, which
is defined as “the method described in sections 1 through 5 of P.L, 1999, ¢.440 (C.40:11-4.1 through
C.40A:11-4.5) of contracting for specialized goods and services in which formal proposals are solicited
from vendors, formal proposals are evaluated by the purchasing agent or counsel; and the governing body
awards a contract to a vendor or vendors from among the formal proposals received,”

N.J.S.A. 40A:11-3 was amended mth P.L. 1999, ¢.440 to raise the bid threshold and require award by

governing body resolution. “When the cost or price of any contract awarded by the purchasing agent in

the aggregate does not exceed in a contract year the sum of $44,000, the contract may be awarded by a

purchasing agent when so authorized by ordinance or resolution as appropriate to the contracting unit, of

the governing body ofthe contracting unit without public advertising for bids and bidding therefore, except

that the governing body may adopt an ordinance or resolution to set a lower threshold for the receipt of
public bids or the solicitation of competltlve quotations.”

N.J.S.A, 40A:11-15 was amended with P.1.. 1999, ¢.440 to extend the base contract period. “Any contract
made pursuant to this section may be awarded for a period 0f 24 consecutive months, except that contracts
for professional services pursuant to paragraph (1) of subsection (a) of N.J.S.A. 40A:11-5 may be awarded
for a period not exceeding 12 consecutive months,

The governing body of the Authority has the responsibility of determining whether the expenditures in any
category will exceed the statutory threshold within the contract year. Where question arises as to whether
any contract or agreement might result in violation of the statute, the opinion of the Authority’s attorney
should be sought before a commitment is made.

Inasmuch as the system of records did not provide for an accumulation of payments for categories for the
performance of any work or the furnishing or hiring of any materials or supplies, the results of such an
accumulation could not reasonably be ascertained, Disbursements were reviewed, however, to determine
whether any clear-cut violations existed.

The results of our examination indicated that no individual payments, contracts, or agreements were made
“for the performance of any work or the furnishing or hiring of any materials or supplies,” in excess of the
statutory thresholds where there had been no advertising for bids in accordance with the provision of
N.J.S.A. 40A:11-4.

Resolutions were adopted authorizing the awarding of contract or agreements for “Professional Services”
per NLJ.S.A. 40A:11-5,
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MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY

A review was performed on all prior year recommendations and corrective action was taken on all items,
except those noted with an asterigk “*”,

Problems and weaknesses noted in our review were not of such magnitude that they would affect our
ability to express an opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole.

Should any questions arise as to our comments and recommendations, or should you desire assistance in
implementing our recommendations, do not hesitate to call us.

We wish to thank Musconetcong Sewerage Authority for their cooperation during the performance of our

audit,

Respectfully submitted,

Wielhaty & Compang, £LC

WIELKOTZ & COMPANY, LLC
Certified Public Accountants
Pompton Lakes, New Jersey
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